Mr. Philip J. Klass, who has been
conducting a one - man campaign
against NICAP and Dr. McDonald, are
singled out “for helpful information
on UFO developmentsin Washington™.

Extraterrestrial hypothesis refuted

The main conclusions of the report
are meant to refute the ufologists’
claim that the UFOs are of extra-
terrestrial origin. This is unscientific in
itself, The main problem should have
been to determine the existence of a
phenomenon. We must first assemble
a scientific body of evidence proving
the existence of the phenomenon
before we can proceed to explain it.
Many of the cases in the report clearly
indicate that an inexplicable pheno-
menon does exist. No effort was made
to correlate these cases. So the first
step was never taken. A statistical
breakdown of all the sightings reported
to the project in 1967-68, plus an

extensive psychological study of the
witnesses to isolate the factors of
reliability and interpretation would
have been of inestimable value. A giant
step forward.

The Condon Report does prove one
thing—perhaps for all time—and that
is that scientists trapped within the
limitations of their own specialties and
disciplines are not equipped to cope
with a phenomenon which is more
observational than physical. They lack
the training necessary for competent
field investigations and they permit
their own emotions and pre-conceived
conclusions to cloud their judgement
and prevent any objective review of
individual testimony. Just as the
separate  UFO organizations have
settled upon conclusions and theories
which they feel are valid, so do the
scientists feel that all the reported
sightings can be explained naturally by
their own particular specialities. Roach

L)

is devoted to ‘“‘airglow™:; others are

obsessed with mirage effects, electrical
plasma, and swamp gas. None of the
men who slapped together the final
Condon Report apparently reviewed all
the data. The report does not even
indicate that any systematic effort was
made to collect all the data,

I personally believe that many of the
issues of the UFO buffery have been
over-magnified and I at least agree with
Condon on some points. 1 think the
extraterrestrial thesis is not applicable
to all the sightings and manifestations
being reported. I think that *“‘govern-
mental secrecy’” is more a myth than a
reality (read the intriguing Condon
report on the Heflin photographs . . .
pages 437-455) and that a large part
of the controversy and dissension has
been caused by speculation and
inadequate investigation.

Summing up, the Condon Report
has been a gross waste of money and
has made only a very small contribu-
tion to the subject.

WORLD ROUND-UP

We are sorry pressure of other articles and
events has forced us to reduce the size of this
feature. However, we hope to include a good
selection of items in our next issue.

‘BRAZIL
More Pereiro earthquakes

As a follow-up to Gordon Creigh-
ton’s article UFOs and Earthquakes
(FSR for November/December 1968)
we read in the French newspaper
Le Midi Libre of August 21, 1968, that
UFOs are still active in the Brazilian
‘quake zone.

“A report from Rio de Janeiro
states that a new earthquake has been
registered at Pereiro (N.E. Brazil),
where civilian authorities have affirmed
that recent shocks were preceded by
strange celestial phenomena. Reports
from Pereiro indicate that the latest
shock was on Thursday last (August
15); there were no casualties but the
whole populace evacuated the town.

“Last week, in Brasilia, the new
Capital, Ernesto Valente, parliamen-

tary deputy for the State of Ceara (in
which Pereiro is located) declared in
the Parliament that the flying saucers
were causing the earthquakes, and he
called upon the Brazilian Government
to institute an inquiry.”

Credit: Hervé Matte of Paris.

[There were also press reports from
Venezuela early in 1968 to the effect
that there were many people in
Venezuela too who believed that the
earthquakes there were due to the
UFOs—EDITOR.]

Postscript to Botucatu

Mr. Nigel Rimes now reports that
he has cleared up the mystery of the
horse bones found near the site of the
Botucatu landing (see FSR, Novem-
ber/December 1968, p. 21). It seems
that the animal’s bones had been used
in a class for students to study. It
happened that on the day when they
had finished with the remains, the
hospital incinerator was not working.
The remains were therefore dumped

temporarily on the other side of the
hospital grounds. Mr. Rimes redeived
this information from one of the
students who had used the bones.

FRANCE
Radar misses Orly saucer

French press reports of August 20,
1968, stated that reports were pouring
in from people who claimed to have
seen a mysterious machine over the
Paris area. For a period of 45 minutes
it was moving about over Villeneuve-
le-Roi, Saint-Denis and Melun, and
numerous residents of these areas saw
it. The descriptions are somewhat im-
precise as some witnesses said it looked
like a metallic cigar while others spoke
of **a balloon cut in two™". However, as
one paper points out, the theory of
collective hallucination is not tenable.

At the Orly Airport nothing abnor-
mal was detected either by ground
personnel or pilots in the air or radar.

Credit: H. J. Besset of Chendve,
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GETTING THE MESSAGE

IT was on August 9, 1966, that Robert Low, co-ordinator of the proposed
U.S. Air Force-sponsored UFO study wrote his notorious “Trick™ memo-
randum to the University of Colorado! before the contract for the setting up
of the Condon Committee was signed. Mr. Low thought that by concentrating
the investigation on the psychology and sociology of the people who report
UFOs rather than on the reports themselves and the “physical reality’ of the
saucer, the trick (costing more than $500,000) would be worked, that the
scientific community would quickly get the message, and that they (the
Condon Committee) would carry the job off to their benefit.

At the time of writing, the Condon Report has been published, but has
yet to be seen by the FSR team. A phone call to Jacques Vallée revealed,
however, that it is “very bad’; as a commentary by John A. Keel confirms
that opinion, we have chosen, for the present, to publish the Keel review.
Suffice it to say in these lines that it seems that the Report is a hasty agglo-
meration of hoary old veteran explanations, irrelevances and padding: perhaps
not denying the existence of the phenomenon but minimising its importance;
a study which seems to have been concerned only in a very small way with the
over-all phenomenon which we have carefully studied all these years.

Whether or not the scientific community got the message remains to be
seen. It appears, however, that the press—especially in the U.K.—got it
quickly enough. A mere handful of provincial newspapers found space for
anything to say about the report, while the national newspapers which
mentioned it afrer it had appeared could be counted on the fingers of one
hand. Their reactions can be judged from their headlines. They were: Daily
Express of January 10 (*“There aren’t any flying saucers™); Daily Mail of
January 10 (**There are no little green men”, and some textual prominence to
the recommendation that teachers should stop students reading about
educationally harmful flying saucers—and that in spite of the fact that at that
very time the Daily Mail was sponsoring a very large and expensive stand for
the British UFO Research Association at the New Year Exhibition, formerly
known as the Schoolboys’ Exhibition); and odd-man-out, The Times of
January 10 (*"UFO study starts new controversy’ with some prominence to
the opposition view as expressed by Dr. David Saunders, former member of
the Condon Committee who was dismissed for—heavens be praised—
revealing the “Trick” memorandum to the world).

On January 9, the Guardian ran a forecast, based on a *leak™ of the
Condon Report’s contents. Its headline was: ““Flying saucers not from other
planets™. The Daily Telegraph contented itself with an eight-line forecast of
the outcome on January 8.

Another odd-man-out was BBC Radio 1 and 2 which, on the evening when
the embargo on the Colorado news was lifted, invited the Editor of FLYING
SAUCER REVIEW to answer questions in a live broadcast via the telephone. The
questions gave him the opportunity to tell a few million listeners about the
“Trick” memorandum and the official misleading of the public, and how
the Condon Report merely underlined the fourth (CIA) recommendation



which was added to the 1953 Robertson Report, and
insisted that official policy should be to deliberately
debunk flying saucer reports.?

Next day (January 10) a reporter of one national
newspaper was even briefed to interview FSR’s Editor
with—so we learned subsequently—a view to having
journalistic fun at our expense. Apparently our twenty-
minute telephone conversation convinced this reporter
that any such attack would be completely futile and
grossly unfair. The article was never written. However,
we should not lose sight of the fact that until his
conversation with FSR's Editor, the reporter, and those
who briefed him, had “got™ only the Condon message.
We can only hope they have now got ours as well!

This, then, is how the message will be expected to
work. The scientific community, the press, and the
services may now be expected to lay-off the topic—
and ridicule those still interested in it—with the full
backing of the Condon Report, regardless of the
quality of its contents. Maybe it is only scientific bloody-
mindedness that is behind it all, or maybe some
official organisation wishes to corner the subject for
itself, or even, maybe, Authority is afraid that an
indirect admission of its inability to cope with the

problem—which could be construed to be inherent in
the setting up of a proper investigative body—would
lead to an undesired public reaction. Whatever the cause
for the apparent desire to sweep UFOs under the carpet,
we will surely witness a degree of quietening down of the
subject.

Fortunately FSR got the message long before the
Condon deliberations were finished. Even though the
Editor was publicly chided by a bright young scientist
for having warned the BUFORA Northern Conference
on November 4, 1967, that the Condon Investigation
was likely to be a **dud”, we continued with our
warnings, implied and direct, in several of our leaders.

It seems the prospect before us now is that everyone
throughout the world interested in UFOs will have to
buckle down to more diligent groundwork, and co-
operate just that much more in seeing that the public
do not miss our message.

NOTES
' Fuller, John G. Fiying Saucer Fiasco in LOOK magazine (issue for May
15, 1968). Reported in FSR, Vol. 14, No. 3, May/June 1968,
* Discovered by Dr. James E. McDonald of Arizona University when
checking through Project Blue Book files, and revealed by him in an
address to the American Society of Newspaper Editors at Washington,

D.C., on April 22, 1967. Reported in FSR, Vol. 13, No. 4, July/August
1967
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THE TARADALE

CAR CRASH
Henk Hinfelaar and Claude Elmes

This article is adapted from Spaceview, the journal of N.Z. Scientific
Space Research, edited by Mr. Hinfelaar, P.O. Box 21-007, Henderson,

N.Z.

HIS case, which involved two

teenagers, a brilliant white object
shaped like a football, the police and
an insurance company, received little
publicity. The only New Zealand news-
paper game enough to print the story
five days after its happening was the
Auckland Sunday News, and although
its report was slightly exaggerated, the
basic outline was there. The reason for
this was that the two witnesses refused
to talk to newspaper reporters, and the
reporter who finally delivered the story
was entirely dependent upon sources
other than those involved in the car
crash,

The first we heard about the incident
was two days after it happened, on
September 10, when at New Zealand
Scientific Space Research, we received
a letter from the two boys concerned
(John Alfred Dow and Paul Franklin)
in which they related how an unidenti-
fied flying object had cost them their
car and caused them injury. They also
asked for ““observers’ reports™ so that
they could give full details. To facilitate
investigations, they were asked to get
in touch with Claude Elmes, who from
then on took charge. Although at this
time of writing (November 26) almost
every conceivable angle of the case has
been covered, we are at present
investigating an incident in the same
area which may produce yet another
witness to the Dow and Franklin
affair.

The boys’ story

On Friday, September 6, John Dow
(19) and Paul Franklin (17) were
driving around the Taradale area and
were in Springfield Road when they
noticed lights hovering above the city
dump. They described the lights as
“dozens of reds, greens and blues
darting around.”

While sitting in their car watching
this display, they were startled by a
tremendous explosion from the direc-
tion of the dump, followed by rumb-
lings and vibrations which shook the
car. The lights then appeared to group
and speed off. This was their first
thought of flying saucers and they
notified the Taradale constable on duty
immediately. Although he appeared

interested, he was non-committal and
passed no comment.

OnSaturday, September 7, they again
went to the area hoping to see some-
thing, but to no avail.

On Sunday, September 8, they again
visited Taradale and saw an object
which shot off a beacon of light,
although they could not see its shape.
They reported this at the Taradale
police station, this time finding another
officer on duty who laughed at their
story and who mentioned the salt-
impregnated cable theory causing the
flashing as a result of the wind. The
only trouble with this theory—so the
boys said—was that there was no wind!

On Monday, September 9, they were
in the Taradale shopping area from
where they saw, over the Puketapu
Hills, a light which commenced glow-
ing and suddenly shot straight up in
the sky. As they were tired of being
laughed at, they did not report this to
the police.

On Tuesday, September 10, wanting
to get to the bottom of it all, they drove
towards Puketapu via Puketapu Road,
then entered Omaranui Road to motor
back to Taradale. While in Omaranui
Road, they saw a lighted object in the
sky in the direction of Hastings. This
object, in addition to frequent changes
of colour from white to red to orange to
blue, kept sending out a beacon of
white light. They decided to drive
towards the source, but the object
disappeared behind cloud. The boys
then turned towards Taradale, crossed
the Tutaekuri Bridge and entered the
Main Road which becomes Gloucester
Street.

Near the Taradale camping grounds,
Franklin, who was sitting at right
angles, saw the object again through
the car’s rear window, this time
across the river, from whence they had
come. The object appeared to pick up
speed as though it had seen them, at
the same time becoming brilliantly
white. Franklin called out and Dow
glanced around. Franklin then shouted:
“Bail out, it’s got us,” and both leapt
from the car on the passenger’s side.
As the car was then doing 30-40 m.p.h.
both boys fell badly, suffering abra-
sions and bruises.

The object was now glowing an un-
believable intense whiteness and one of
the boys (Franklin), lying on his back,
covered his eyes with his hands as he
thought he was about to be blinded.
However, after hovering about 2ft.
above them, the object suddenly shot
up into the sky. The object, the boys
claim, was a “‘spheroid™ about 2ift. in
diameter, and although glowing bril-
liantly, did not cast any light whatso-
ever. Instead, they had the impression
of a translucent brilliance with the light
pointing into the object.

Meanwhile the car, out of control,
had swerved across the road and
smashed into the doorway of a
fruiterer's shop, demolishing the plate-
glass window. A crowd had gathered
as a result of the noise and found two
badly frightened and shocked youths,
calling out about the flying saucer
which had attacked them.

Dow, in a personal report, states
that the object was 2 to 3ft. away from
the rear of the car when he dived out.
That was the last he saw of it as he
landed face down on the gr und. The
object was solid and made o sound—
the time was 8.50 p.m.

Investigation
i. The boys

The immaculately dressed Franklin
was found to be the spokesman, and
appeared to know something of the
UFO-subject. Queried on this, said he
had recently read Adamski’s Inside the
Space Ships, but thought it very far
fetched. He told the story, Dow
occasionally interjecting with some
minor detail,

Dow, although the older, was the
more youthful in manner of the two.
Throughout the interview he was
tested on minor details, but would at
any time repeat what Franklin had
already said. No variation in the story
was found. Both boys are definitely not
the bodgie-type, but Franklin is
obviously the leader.

They described their injuries, abra-
sions and bruises to the sides of their
bodies, but said they had not sought
medical attention until the following
night when they attended the public
hospital. The hospital staff did not



believe the story. Thinking their
wounds were not serious, they had
delayed examination until their clothes
were “'sticking™ to them.

The Boys also mentioned that on the
Wednesday night following the acci-
dent they became very frightened dnd
ran to the Napier police station for
protection. The reason for their fright
was contained in stories told them by a
reporter. This reporter tried to impress
upon them what happens to flying
saucer victims, and advised them not
to go out after dark,

il. Scene of accident

The tow-truck driver, who arrived
on the scene half an hour after the
accident, reported seeing two badly
shocked boys who were “‘cursing and
swearing”™ about the *'so and so™ flying
saucer that had attacked them. He com-
mented that if the boys were putting on
an act, it was a very good one. There
was no suggestion that the boys had
been drinking and there was no
evidence of liquor. He also mentioned
that the police were there (they had
arrived a quarter hour earlier) and
appeared to accept the boys’ statement.

An inspection of the scene four days
after the accident failed to reveal any
skid marks. This indicated that the car
did crash unattended by any driver, as
the natural reaction to avoid a collision
would be to apply the brakes. A close
examination of the shop revealed a new
door jamb and a new plate-glass
window: the owners had been very
prompt in having repairs carried out.

The boys approached from Glouces-
ter Street, which has a speed limit of
55 m.p.h. One-tenth of a mile from the
scene, where the road has a slight
bend, one enters the 30 m.p.h. zone
and it is assumed that the boys were
doing maximum allowable speed when
entering this zone. This would explain
why they were still doing between 30
and 40 m.p.h. when abandoning the
car,

iii. The car

The smashed car is an Austin AS5S
Mark I, 1957 model. It was thoroughly
examined by Claude Elmes. There is no
sign of burns or anything to indicate
that this was not a normal smash. It
has a lean to the right front similar to
a sinking ship and is a write-off. The
right front wing is wrenched off and
twisted back along the side of the car,
and the front axle assembly is a mess.
The damage is consistent with a head-
on collision at a speed of at least 30
m.p.h. Dow said that three months
before the accident he had purchased
new tyres for the front wheels and that
after the accident one tyre was com-
pletely bald. This was found to be
correct; the left front tyre looked as

Written-off, the Austin AS5, Mk. |

though it was due for a retread. Both
boys are quite certain that neither
ignition nor lights were affected by the
object. However, Dow mentioned that
when they jumped from the car it was
still in top gear, but when inspected
right after the smash it was in third
gear. The front wheels are pointed
hard right, the direction of the swerve
into the shop. This is consistent with the
bend in the road at the time that the
car was abandoned.

iv. The police

The police clamped down on the
case, but there is a strong suggestion
that the officer in charge was willing
to discuss the matter with somebody
who knew something about the
subject. However, a crank apparently
called at the station, and this resulted
in orders being issued that nobody else
was to be given information. This
unfortunate happening is consistent

with the boys receiving all manner of

correspondence from different parts of
New Zealand, most of it being *“crank-
type” mail. The boys have been advised
to ignore it.

On the night of the accident the
police said they had simply seen a
fireball, but the weather did not cater
for such phenomena. The weather map
for that night shows the area half way
between barometric pressure 1000 and
1005. Temperature 59-6°—fine. Cool
south-westerly airstream over country.
Fresh gusty N.W. winds to W.
decreasing. Fine and mild, cold night.
Frost 2.00 a.m. On the accident night,
a constable was motoring down the
Taihape Road and saw a reddish light
in the sky towards Taradale. When he
arrived at Taradale the accident had
occurred.

We are also aware that a certain
Wing Commander in Wellington has
received the police file and is showing
much curiosity. Another unusual fact
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i1s that three days after the accident
there were four Canberras in Napier
for—as the Air Force said—exercises.
Napier normally does not see an AF
plane for months on end.

Although the police booked the boys
on a charge of dangerous driving, it
would appear that they accepted the
story as told by the boys but played the
case down as much as possible. Con-
stable Barry Martin-Bus of the Napier
police later testified that when arriving
at the scene, he found two youths in an
hysterical condition. However, at the
same time he conceded that the story
pouring forth from the boys sounded
sensible and logical in spite of their
excited state of mind.

v. The Auckland Sunday News

When compared with the story
which we obtained from the boys and
residents of Taradale, the newspaper’s
story of September 15 is indeed
exaggerated. Nobody in Taradale is
Jittery or frightened at the prospect of
travelling alone at night, nor did the
boys see a ““massive flashing object”
rise from the ground at the dump.

The journalist who interviewed the
boys is not on the staff of the Sunday
News, but is in fact a reporter of the
Napier Daily Telegraph. This news-
paper, however, never published the
story. The Sunday News admitted to us
that the reporter’'s name is George
Fraser and that it was he who passed
the story on to them in his capacity as
correspondent. Somewhere along the
line Fraser “elaborated” on the facts
and we have no doubt that the same
reporter frightened the boys with some
scary stories.

vi. The insurance company

The insurance company involved is

the N.I.LM.U. When Claude called at

their Napier office, he was referred to
the claims manager, who, as soon as
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he knew what Claude required, refused
to pass any comment. All he suggested
was that their Wellington head office
be contacted. Asked if they would pay
out on this case, treating it as a straight
out claims case, he declined to com-
ment, but he did say that the Sunday
News story was exaggerated.

A local iron curtain having been
drawn over the matter, we wrote to the
General Manager in Wellington, asking
him whether his company accepted the
story as related by the insured John
Alfred Dow as to the cause of the
accident. He was also requested to
comment on Franklin's testimony in
the matter, and police co-operation in
general. Within three days we received
a courteous reply, indicating that . . .

I. The company had no reason to
doubt the account of the circumstances
leading up to the accident as related by
Dow.

2. The company was satisfied, on
the facts presented to it, that the
damage to the car arose from an
accident.

3. There were no discrepancies in
Franklin’s testimony as compared to
Dow’s.

4. The police report had assisted
the company in evaluating the accuracy
of Dow’s account of the circumstances.
N.LM.U. in fact concedes that its
decision to honour the claim has a

direct bearing upon theevents preceding
the accident.

vii. The court case

Dow’s case, based on a charge of
dangerous driving, was heard in the
Napier Magistrates’ Court on Novem-
ber 11, 1968, before Mr. W. K. L.
Dougall. S. M. Dow, an apprentice
joiner, pleaded Not guilty. Sergeant
W. T. Pender, of the Napier Police,
prosecuted and Mr. A. K. Monagan
appeared for Dow. The Magistrate
dismissed the case on the grounds that
Dow’s state of mind at the time had
made him lose control of the car. Fur-
ther evidence by the defence was not
heard. This was merely because the
evidence for the defence was similar
to that of the prosecution,

UFO—EYEWITNESS ACCOUNTS
ON RECORD

Talking of their experiences: air-line
pilot Capt. Millbank, Father W. B. Gill,
CN Rlys diesel loco driver W. Benwick,
Lord Dowding, Vancouver witnesses and
their remarkable ‘beep' and others—
all on record (long-play 33 r.p.m.).—

RECOMMENDED, C.B. Cheque or
money order for $3.98 to:

UFOs ANONYMOUS

2148 McKid Cr., N.E,,
CALGARY 62, ALBERTA, CANADA

The first witness for the prosecution,
Constable Barry Martin-Bus of Napier,
did the accused a good turn, for every-
thing he said was in Dow’s favour. In
addition the police had to admit to the
sightings they had themselves made.
Moreover, Dow had got together a
number of witnesses who were on the
scene of the accident soon after its
occurrence. In other words, they had a
watertight case,

In dismissing the case, the Magistrate
said it was evident the accused had got
himself into such a state of mind that
he had acted involuntarily when
something had distracted him. This in
itself is a fair enough statement, but
Mr. Dougall went on to say: **Most of
these lights people see have a natural
cause and ‘the flying saucer in hot
pursuit’ might have been the lights of
a car coming around the corner.”

This case has not been an “‘ufolo-
gist’s dream” by any stretch of the
imagination, but the circumstantial
evidence gathered is such that there is
no doubt in our minds that the boys’
story is authentic.

Apart from the boys’ story, there are
certain factors which tend to back up
the case, such as the smashed car and
the fact that both police and insurance
company have accepted the unusual
circumstances leading up to the
accident. Ever since the happening on
September 10 there has been a spate of
UFO-sightings in the Napier district,
which, in more than one case, confirm
the descriptions given by the boys.

There have been vibrations, tremors,
rumblings and bangings in the hills
which are not confirmed by earthquake
recordings. Many people report flash-
ing lights for which no natural explana-
tion can be found. In the area where
sightings have been reported there is a
Sub-Power Station (Redcliffe) and
several distribution transformers. There
is also a river (Tutaekuri) and the area
overall is peaceful. We know that
Water, Power and Quietness are usually
conditions frequently sought out by
our alien visitors. An interview of
Dow’s parents established that the
father accepts his son’s story, and that
the mother, although a little doubtful,
is more willing to accept it since the
insurance company is doing so.

‘PLATILLOS VOLANTES’

en Iberoamerica y Espaiia

For those who read Spanish, we heartily
recommend this new work by the
indefatigable ANTONIO  RIBERA,
which presents a history of the UFO
phenomenon from Mexico to the
Antarctic, with a few cases from Spain.

EDITORIAL POMAIRE S.A., AV.
INFANTA CARLOTA 157, BARCE-
LONA (also SANTIAGO de CHILE,
BUENOS AIRES, MEXICO).




BALEIA ENTITIES SEEN AGAIN?

Nigel Rimes

Representative of Flying Saucer Review in Brazil

THERE are substantial indications

that the Brazilian Air Force and
other - Brazilian authorities have
lowered the customary curtain of
silence over quite a number of further
landings that have taken place in the
region of Baurt and Lins (in the State
of Sdo Paulo) during the course of
1958. Investigation is difficult and may
become much more so, and it is
necessary to proceed with great
caution,

In the meantime I am able to give
below a preliminary outline of a
remarkable case in which, as it seems,
the tall type of men seen at Baleia'
have again been encountered.

The single-known witness, whom 1
have interviewed personally and ques-
tioned in great detail, is a young
Brazilian woman aged about 21 or 22.
A tall, well-built country girl, she
comes from a town in the State of Sao
Paulo. 1 have given FLYING SAUCER
review full details as to her name and
address, but for obvious reasons it is
most necessary that these remain
confidential at present, and 1 am
requesting that they be kept out of this
account.

The young lady states that she hap-
pened to read a report in a newspaper
about the “Symposium of Flying
Saucers” recently held in Sao Paulo.
This prompted her to go to the offices
of the Brazil Herald? to tell her own
story, which she felt must surely be of
great importance. She was just relating
it to Mr. Willi Wirz, the managing
director of the newspaper, when, by
chance, 1 too appeared at his office and
so was able to take part in the interro-
gation,

We found the witness’s manner
direct and simple, and she created an
excellent impression. She made it clear
that she desired no publicity and that
she had only come forward with this
information because she felt that it was
her duty to do so and that the affair
must be important. She appeared
throughout our interview to know
exactly what she had seen and she
would not be swayed in any way from
her story when we tried to suggest that
what she had seen was perhaps some-
thing else of a more conventional
nature.

Her story
She states that, on the evening of

Fig. 1.

November 21, 1968, she was a passen-
ger on a rural bus travelling along the
Via Dutra, on the “Circular Guarul-
hos™ Line, between the towns of
Guarulhos® and Vila Barros (both
places in the State of Sdao Paulo).

At 9.30 p.m. the bus halted at a rural
stop near Macédo, where it is custo-
mary for the driver to *“‘take a break™
and wait a while—especially if, as on
this occasion, he was perhaps a little
ahead of his timetable.

There was no street lighting at the
spot, but, as it was summer time, it
was still quite light. To the left of the
road lay a piece of waste ground and
upon it, at a distance which she
estimated to be about 40 metres from
the bus, there was, either standing, or
hovering close to the ground, “a
shining metallic object of the size of
an Aero Willys car™ (i.e. approximately
the size of a British Jaguar four-door
saloon).

Fig. 1 shows the witness's own
first sketch of the object, drawn in
our presence.

We then showed her pictures of
various alleged types of saucer for
comparison, and she immediately
selected, as the most similar to what
she had seen, the Botucatu?* UFO—
although with certain definite modifica-
tions. For example, she was adamant
that the thing she had seen possessed
no tripod landing-gear, but a set of
three steps.

Since she had now selected the
Botucatu type as the nearest in general
shape, 1 drew the outline shown in
Fig. 2 and got her to fill in all the vari-

Witness's own sketch.
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ous details such as the antenna, the
dome, the number of segments (four
she thought) forming the dome, the
*skirt™, and so on.

The witness felt very emphatically
that the “‘skirt” with its row of
circular changing lights was spinning
clockwise. And yet she said that she
could see the open door the whole
time, and the three steps down to the
ground, and that the door itself was
not moving.

My personal impression is that a
possible explanation for this might be
that the constantly changing row of
circular lights induced in her the
erroneous idea that there was a spin-
ning movement. Or, alternatively, |
wonder whether the shape of the craft
might not have been thus:

In such a case the lights could have
been on a lower band below the level
of the door, and the lights and this

Fig. 2. A. Antenna with red light. B.

Dome, in segments. C. Skirt, seemed

to be spinning clockwise. D. Patch of
violet light beneath.

lower band of the “skirt™ might have
indeed been spinning while the upper
portion of the “‘skirt” containing the
door remained motionless. I hope that
she will perhaps be able to confirm
this to me later without any prompting.

The entities

We come now to the most astonish-
ing part of the lady's story. For she
claims that, standing in front of the
landed UFO, there were three men
about 2 metres in height. “They were
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wearing skin - tight shining black
clothes, and black boots that were also
shiny. Their suits also covered their
heads, leaving only the faces bare.,”
(See Fig. 4.)

two stationary police radio-patrol cars
numbered RP |1 and RP 2. (RP =
“radio-patrulha™: radio-patrol) (see
Fig. 6). The policemen had guns in
their hands.

For a time, the witness continued,
the two parties stood there facing each

N

Fig. 4

One of the entities “‘was holding a sort
of tube under one arm.” This tube,
she estimated, was about 60 centi-
metres long and about 7 centimetres in
diameter. Around the main barrel of
this (weapon ?) there was another tube,
spiral in form, and of what looked like
shining aluminium. The witness was
moreover quite positive that, as shown
in Fig. 5, there were two thin projec-
tions at the rear end of the tube.
Between her and the entities, at a
distance of some 20 metres or so from
her bus, and consequently with their
backs towards her, she said there was
moreover a crowd of possibly 20
people grouped behind three Brazilian
policemen, all of them confronting the
entities. And on the road, just ahead
of the bus, and behind the policemen
and the Brazilian crowd, there were

Fig. 5. Estimated length 60 cm;
Diameter 7 cm.

other. Then, suddenly, from the tube
held under the arm of one of the UFO
entities, there shot forth a brilliant
concentrated beam of silver-coloured
light, like a flame. The beam was
directed at the party of Brazilian police
and bystanders, the front ranks of
whom (including the policemen) imme-
diately ceased all movement and were
“paralysed”. She noticed however that
a number of the others who were not
in the forefront were also affected, and
she saw several fall as though in a faint.
She also particularly noticed that the
entity did not swing the tube itself, but
swung his whole body round, still
holding the tube in position under his
arm.

The three UFO entities had, as she
put it, “*seemed very calm throughout”,
and they now walked slowly back to
their machine and entered it via the
door. The craft then took off and
rapidly climbed away until it was lost
in the overcast.

The witness estimated that these
events had lasted about 15 minutes,

Such, then, is our preliminary report
on what would appear to have been
a prodigious episode. If it lasted as long
as the witness says, and there were

-

other passengers with her on the bus,
then there must be a considerable
number of witnesses in addition to the
large crowd of bystanders and the three
radio patrol car policemen, and it is
immensely frustrating that, so far, we
have not managed to hear anything
from any of them. On the other hand
it is important for us to note at this
juncture that the young woman's story
is not entirely without corroboration.
For there was in fact a brief mention
of the case in the newspapers of
November 22, which are being for-
warded to FLYING SAUCER REVIEW,

Comparison with the Baleia case

When shown (in FSR Vol. 4, No. 6,
which had just arrived) the account of
the landing at Baleia and the sketches
of the entities and their tube seen at
that place, she immediately recognised
them, claiming that they were identical
with the men and the *“‘weapon” that
she had seen. (It is, I hope, needless to
emphasise that she was only shown the
report of the Baleia case after the whole
of her own account and description
had already been given.)

On two points she was adamant.
Firstly, she said that none of the three
beings seen by her had an antenna on
the top of his head as is shown in the
FLYING SAUCER REVIEW'sS illustration.
But here it must be pointed out that
the witness at Baleia, Fabio Jos¢ Diniz,
stated quite clearly that only one man
—not the one holding the tubular
device—bore the antenna on top of his
helmet, and this point was emphasised
in Gordon Creighton’s translation of
Dr. Hulvio Brant Aleixo’s article. Since
one of the entities seen at Baleia also
had no antenna on his head, it cannot
be said that our lady witness’s story is
at variance with what was said about
Baleia.

Secondly, she maintained very em-
phatically that the UFO seen by her
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was “quite different™ from the drawing
of what was allegedly seen at Baleia.
On the other hand—apart from the
matter of the three steps instead of the
tripod landing-gear—she was strongly
inclined to identify the machine seen
by her with the one allegedly seen by
the boys at Botucatu and reported by
me.

Provisional conclusions

Our young lady seemed to be an
entirely sincere and truthful person.
At no point did she waver in her story,
although as already stated she did
admit to puzzlement on the one point
of whether or not the “skirt” of the
saucer and its row of changing
coloured lights was spinning. (At any
rate, I think I can say that we certainly
had not unconsciously “*fed™ to her the
idea that it was spinning in a clockwise
direction. Such was certainly not what
we “wanted to hear”, as our own pet
theory had tended towards the idea
that such “*spin™ on UFOs was always
anti-clockwise.)

Some sceptical readers in a small
country like Britain may find it strange
that a bus should halt for 15 minutes
at an isolated rural spot [Why should
we be surprised ? Our public transport,
particularly Southern Region trains,
often halts inexplicably for long periods

even in built-up areas!—enitor], but 1
am sure that anyone who has made
long bus journeys in the larger coun-
tries of the world will realize that, as is
the case in the U.S.A. and certainly
here in Brazil, such regular *break
stops” for drivers and passengers are a
normal thing. Moreover, as the witness
explains, the place where the episode
occurred is in fact the half-way point
on that particular run.

If it be claimed that our witness had
already seen drawings of the Baleia
entities and device, and of the Botucatu
UFO, and had then decided to concoct
this story, we can only ask: Where
could she have seen them? These
drawings appeared only in Professor
Hulvio Brant Aleixo’s privately mimeo-
graphed bulletin and FLYING SAUCER
REVIEW and not, to the best of our
knowledge, anywhere in the Brazilian
press. Moreover, if she had seen them,
and was basing her concocted story on
them, why did she not insist that the
three entities had antennae on their
heads (the only sketch in FSR showed
the man with the antenna) and that the
machine had three legs, as shown in
FSR’s reproduction of the sketches
accompanying my article on the land-
ing at Botucatu?

Our conclusion so far is that this case
certainly seems to be genuine, and that

the military authorities have clamped
down on other witnesses of it.

We intend to make certain further
investigations, details of which it would
be wiser to withhold at present. We
shall have further interviews with the
witness, and we shall go with her to the
spot where she claims it all took place.
Needless to say we shall also make
careful efforts to locate some of those
numerous witnesses—including the
three Brazilian policemen,

NOTES
by Gordon Creigliton

By an all-too-e¢asy oversight, when translating
Dr. Halvio Brant Aleixo’s report on this case
for inclusion in FSR for November/December
1968, 1 forgot that 1 was working from
Portuguese and not from Spanish, and so
called the place La Baleia. The feminine
singular article in Portuguese is not /a but a.
Hence the place should be called A Baleia. Or
perhaps simply Baleia.
Brazil’s only daily newspaper in the English
language, with offices at Avenida Sdo Luiz
153, Lj.13—Térreo, Sio Paulo. Mr. Willi
Wirz, its managing director is a reader of
FSR and took part with Mr, Nigel Rimes in
the investigation of the Botucatu case, Heis a
member of Dr. Buhler's SBEDV, and has also
recently founded in Sdo Paulo a new UFO
investigation group known as ABECE. (In
English: The Brazilian Association for the
Study of Extraterrestrial Civilizations.)
¥ Guarulhos lies approximately due north of the

city of Sio Paulo, at 23° 28" S, Latitude, 46°

32" W. Longitude.
¢ See The Landing at Botucatu by Nigel Rimes.
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THE “MEN IN BLACK” REPORTS

Should they be taken seriously?

John Harney

Our contributoris Editor of the Merseyside UFO Bulletin, an independent journal which,
until recently, was produced for the sole purpose of exchange.” In this excellent
endeavour he is assisted by Alan W. Sharp and John A. Rimmer. This article has
been adapted from a longer item which appeared in the September 1968 issue of

MUFOB.

EOPLE who witness UFOs and

those who attempt to investigate
their reports often report strange
experiences which appear to have
some connection with the UFO
mystery. This article is mainly
concerned with one aspect of the
problem, which is at present being
much discussed among ufologists,
that is the stories of witnesses or
investigators who claim to have
been threatened or warned to keep
silent about their sightings and/or
theories by mysterious visitors and
telephone callers. The main ques-
tions to be dealt with are:

1. How serious is the problem?

2. What are the best methods of
attempting to discover the cause of
such reports?

The two main attitudes to the
problem

These may be briefly stated thus:

(a) Genuine reports of witnesses
being silenced, having photographs
confiscated, etc., are due to the
activities of government security
agencies or individuals posing, for
some unknown reason, as govern-
ment agents. All other such reports
are hoaxes or delusions.

(b) Some of the reports are
genuine, but theories about govern-
ment agents or people impersonat-
ing them are inadequate to account
for important details given in the
reports. The exact nature and pur-
pose of such incidents remain a
mystery.

Brief history of MIB reports

The first report of the “*Men in
Black™ (MIB) variety in the post-
war phase of UFO activity is
generally agreed to have been
contained in statements made by

Harold A. Dahl to Kenneth Arnold
during the latter’s investigation of
the alleged Maury Island sighting
of June 21, 1947.% According to
Dahl, the day after his sighting a
man called at his home early in the
morning and invited him to break-
fast. Dahl said that he was not
surprised at this, for men often
called on people in his type of work
early in the morning for the purpose
of buying salvaged logs. The man
wore a hlack suit, was of medium
height, and there was nothing
unusual about his appearance. He

appeared to be about forty years of

age. Dahl accepted his invitation
and noted that the man drove a
1947 Buick Sedan. The man sug-
gested that Dahl should drive his
own car and follow him. On the
way downtown Dahl failed to get
the licence number of the car he was
following. The two men went to a
cafe and ordered breakfast. As
soon as they sat down the man
immediately began telling Dahl, in
minute and accurate detail, the
events of the previous day when he
and others had witnessed the
UFOs. The man then told Dahl
that if he loved his family and didn’t
want anything to happen to his
general welfare, he would not discuss
his experience with anyone.

The items italicized in the above
account refer to details which recur
again and again in more recent MIB
reports. The Maury Island case,
which is much too involved and
complicated to summarize here, is
still argued over today, but the
U.S. Air Force claims that it was a
hoax, devised by Harold Dahl and
his colleague, Fred L. Crisman.
Ruppelt has described it as “‘the
dirtiest hoax in the UFO history."?
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Dahl and Crisman are said to have
confessed to the Air Force investi-
gators.

The fullest account of the Maury
Island affair is given in The Coming
of the Saucers, by Kenneth Arnold
and Ray Palmer. If any open-
minded person reads Arnold’s
account carefully, he will find it
very difficult to believe that Crisman
and Dahl were able to arrange all
the mysterious incidents described
by him. Hoax or not. the whole story
contains elements which crop up
again and again in later incidents.
quite apart from the MIB incident
described.

The classic MIB case is that
involving Albert K. Bender, who
closed down his organisation, the
International Flying Saucer Bureau,
on the orders of *“‘three men in
black™. The story circulating at the
time was to the effect that Bender
was studying his collection of UFO
data when the solution to the
mystery suddenly occurred to him.
The MIB visited him, assured him
that his guess was correct and
warned him not to divulge the
secret to anyone else. Bender
refused to give reasons for closing
the IFSB, but hinted that a govern-
ment agency was responsible. Ben-
der’s case, along with other stories
of a similar nature, received great
publicity in the UFO world, and
Gray Barker wrote a book on this
theme.?

* MUFOB, Mimeographed, bi-
monthly, is now also available in a
limited quantity at one shilling per
copy (post paid) from—Mr. John
Harney, 53 Woodyear Road, Brom-
borough, Wirral, Cheshire, 1.62 6AY.



In 1963, Bender published his
own account of the affair.* Far from
clearing up the mystery, Bender’s
story only served to create more
confusion, for in it he claimed that
the MIB were beings from another
planet who were visiting the Earth
at that time for the purpose of
extracting a substance from sea
water to take back to their own
planet for use as food. Anyone who
discovered too much about their
activities was silenced, in order that
the aliens could work undisturbed.

Naturally, even the most eager
UFO believers found the story un-
convincing, and it seems to have
been generally assumed that Bender
had—possibly through overwork—
become the victim of an elaborate
delusion, a delusion made worse by
his interest in horror stories and
occultism.

However, stories of witnesses and
investigators being  “‘silenced™,
either by sinister, black-garbed
figures or, more convincingly, by
ordinary-looking men who pur-
ported to be government officials
persisted through the vears until
the vast increase in UFO reports
since about 1964 brought with it
some quite convincing reports of
attempts to intimidate witnesses.

At the present time controversy
rages concerning the findings of
John Keel, who claims that the
MIB are very real and very active.
Keel has published a number of
articles on the subject® and reports
which tend to support his claims
are available from other sources.®

A local appeal for information

In the July/August issue of our
Bulletin we appealed for un-
published information concerning
reports of visits by the MIB and
other odd experiences in connection
with UFO sightings and events.
This appeal for information was
published in the Liverpool Echo?
and broadcast on BBC Radio
Merseyside. Only three letters were
received in response and these were
merely requests for information.

However, the possibility that
some victims of such experiences
may be deluded was mentioned in
the Echo and in the radio interview.
Nobody likes to think that he is
subject to delusions, so to begin
with we are at once faced with an
obstacle to any serious enquiry into

this matter. An obvious question is:
Why did we receive no local reports
of the MIB or suchlike, in view
of the adequate publicity given to
the appeal ? Possible answers are:

1. Because there were no such
experiences to report.

2. There were such incidents but
the victims did not report them (a)
because they did not want to be
thought of as being deluded, or
because they were afraid of possible
damaging or undesirable publicity,
or (b) because the MIB would not
let them!

Needless to say, the first alterna-
tive is likely to prove to be the most
popular explanation, but it must be
pointed out that the technique used
locally is very unlikely to be
successful, whichever of the alterna-
tive answers given above happens
to be the truth. The approach
favoured by John Keel, that of
personally interviewing many UFO
witnesses, listening sympathetically
tothemand gaining their confidence,
seems more likely to pay dividends.

Different aspects of the problem
in the U.S.A,

Although stories about the ha-
rassment of UFO witnesses and
investigators have come from vari-
ous countries ever since 1947, they
have been particularly persistent in
the U.S.A. Such stories often
sounded very convincing. Witnesses
claimed to have been visited by
men purporting to be FBI agents,
or dressed in Air Force uniform.
These men confiscated UFO photo-
graphs and warned witnesses to
keep quiet about their sightings.
Naturally, many of the UFO groups
took these reports seriously and
complained bitterly to the Air
Force.

In January, 1967, however, ufo-
logists got quite a shock when
Colonel George Freeman, the Pen-
tagon spokesman for Project Blue
Book, revealed that the U.S. Air
Force was just as annoyed about
the mystery men as the ufologists
were.? Colonel Freeman cited
several cases. A man bearing
credentials from the North Ameri-
can Air Defence saw Mr. Rex
Heflin, who had taken a series of
UFO pictures in California in 1965,
and demanded the originals. The
photographs were never returned
and NORAD denied any knowledge
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of the incident. In February, 1960,
Mr. Joe Perry, of Grand Blanc,
Michigan, took a similar set of
pictures and was visited by two
men posing as FBI agents who
confiscated his photographs.
Colonel Freeman denied that these
incidents were connected with the
Air Force UFO investigation and
was quoted as saying: “We haven’t
been able to find out anything
about these men. We would sure
like to catch one.”

On the other hand, investigators
have recently brought to light many
incidents of a more unlikely charac-
ter. These include stories of visits
from mysterious “men in black”,
who are said to drive about in black
cars which are very old models but
are nevertheless said to look brand
new. These cars either have false
licence plates or none at all, yet are
completely successful in evading
the police, The MIB are also said
to drive up to witnesses’ homes at
night and take flash pictures of
their houses with the aid of
cumbersome - looking cameras
mounted on tripods. In other words,
most of the reported actions of the
MIB appear to be completely
nonsensical,

One of the contributing factors
to the present confusion about this
problem is the very conservative
approach to the UFO mystery by
many of the more influential
American enthusiasts. Such a state-
ment will seem incredible to anyone
with little knowledge of the subject,
but it is this conservatism which
has probably led to the loss of many
interesting reports and has suc-
ceeded in distorting the true picture
of the world-wide UFO mystery
through the years.

Published accounts of the work of
Project Blue Book have made it
plain that reports of UFO occu-
pants were either thrown into the
nearest wastepaper basket or placed
in a file marked “*C.P.” (Crackpot).
The more serious UFO organisa-
tions tended to adopt a somewhat
similar policy with the result that
the more bizarre aspects of the
mystery were for long neglected or
left to groups which were notorious
for their lack of competence and
objectivity. However, it seems that
the situation has recently improved,
although one suspects that the
amount of weight which investiga-



tors give to each report depends
overmuch on how far the report
fits in with their theories. It appears
that some ufologists, many of them
comparatively new to the subject,
have now almost completely dis-
carded the popular approach of
collecting data to support a particu-
lar theory (e.g. UFOs are space-
ships from other planets; UFOs are
occult phenomena; otherwise in-
explicable UFO reports are hoaxes
and delusions, etc.). The present
fashion seems to be a recognition
of the fact that the UFO pheno-
mena are extremely complex and
have apparently endless ramifica-
tions.

How serious is the problem?

Critics will say that in embarking
on this article 1 have fallen into the
trap of being side-tracked from the
main UFO problem by apparently
giving credence to reports which
are merely the results of hoaxes,
paranoid delusions, exaggerations
and plain lies. It is true that the
problem of assessing the reliability
of the reports is a formidable one,

in view of the lack of physical
evidence and the unpredictability of
the reported phenomena. In the
field of psychical research, Hansell'?
has described in detail how highly
intelligent people, with scientific
training and experience, can be
fooled by faulty memory, cheating
and trickery in experiments, wishful
thinking and other factors which
make psychic experiences and ex-
periments seem more impressive
than they really are. As many of the
alleged MIB experiences seem to
involve phenomena of the kind
familiar to psychic researchers,
Hansell's criticisms could no doubt
profitably be borne in mind when
investigating such reports.

Whatever the cause of MIB and
similar reports, they should be
studied seriously along with all the
other phenomena associated with
UFOs.

How should the problem be tackled?

The reports by John Keel con-
cerning the MIB and other strange
occurrences have attracted a good
deal of criticism and, in some

quarters, amusement. FLYING
SAUCER REVIEW reports that there is
said to be a group of scientists
interested in UFOs who burst into
fits of uncontrollable laughter when-
ever they see a John Keel document.
It also seems that some of the
criticisms have been couched in
terms more appropriate to the
wilder extremes of politics than to
scientific enquiry. There is only one
way to deal with the startling
claims of John Keel and others who
have written in similar vein and the
Editor of FLYING SAUCER REVIEW
has summed it up neatly thus:

“If chair-borne critics, writers,
UFO-buffs or laughing scientists
are urged to say Mr. Keel is wrong,
then it is incumbent upon them to
get out and about and to thoroughly
investigate his claims. If they do not
do this they will find themselves on
insecure ground.™!?

When enquiring into such reports
it should of course be realised that
some of them can be quite easily
explained. On the one hand, there
are people who become mentally 1ll

(continued on page 20)
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UNUSUAL
PHOTOGRAPH
FROM 14,000 f1.
ANDEAN
OBSERVATORY

Prof. Gabriel Alvial

Conducted by the Centre of
Cosmic Radiation of the
Faculty of Physical Sciences
and Mathematics of the
University of Chile.

INCE October 1967, the technicians operating the

cosmic ray instruments of the “El Infiernillo™
Observatory have been observing a series of luminous
phenomena which need to be explained. To each of
these phenomena we have given the code “FPE”
(Fenomeno por explicar) or PRE (Phenomena requiring
explanation). These have the appearance of stars of
magnitude zero to one, which move and which halt
in space. Some photographs taken during the static
period of these luminous foci show luminous rings of
Fresnel diffraction.

The *“El Infiernillo™ Observatory forms part of the
Faculty of Physical Sciences and Mathematics of the
University of Chile and is located at a height of 4,343
metres (more than 14,000ft.) in the Cordillera de los
Andes, whose geographic co-ordinates are latitude
337 10’ S. and longitude 70° 17° W. Its altitude allows a
probable geometrical observation of a meteorite 150
times greater than that of any ordinary city.

The attached photograph was taken from the
Observatory at 01.35 hours G.M.T. on May 17, 1968,
and is one of three photographs taken over a period
of 60 minutes of a flickering light. The smaller light
appearing above and to the left of the FPE (PRE)
corresponds to that of the “El Roble” Observatory
which i1s almost 100 kilometres distant from “El
Infiernillo™ and is at a height of 2,000 metres.

The *“*Centre of Cosmic Radiation™ prefers not to use
OVNI, UFO, or other such terms in its search for an
explanation of these possible natural phenomena.

As a result of the photometric analysis of the obser-
vations carried out, a project has been developed for

the installation of a space scanning camera, the cost of

which, inclusive of a year’s operating, is U.S.$35.000.
This amount is being canvassed from various foreign
and international institutions.

Acknowledgement: | have to thank Prof. Ricardo
Vergara for his co-operation, and to express my
appreciation of his experience, in which, as Public
Relations Officer of the University of Chile he has
distributed the details of the “observations™ in such a
way that the public may be informed and an objective
opinion may be reached.

[Qur thanks are due rto Mr. J. Dennis Llewellyn for
bringing this item to our attention—EeEDITOR.]
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A FATAL ENCOUNTER

Charles Bowen

ILAR de Goias is situated in the

upland interior of Brazil. Not
very far away is that remarkable
act of federal faith, the new capital
city of Brazilia. The incident which
is the subject of this article took
place at a fazenda situated in the
district at approximately Long. 49
45" W, Lat. 14° 30’ S.

The report of the incident
arrived from FSR representative
Nigel Rimes in mid-January. My
account is taken from that report,
which is a translation by Nigel
Rimes of a transcription from the
original report, made by Sr. Willi
Wirz, managing director of the
Brazil Herald. The transcription
and translation are both dated
January 11, 1969.

The alleged incident

On August 13, 1967, at about
16.00 hours (Br. St. Time). Inacio
de Souza, 41, and his wife, Dna.
Luiza de Souza, the parents of five
children, were returning to the
fazenda where Inacio was em-
ployed. They had been on a
shopping expedition to the nearest

village. Inacio is described as
illiterate, simple, honest, trust-
worthy and reserved. He had

worked at the fazenda for six years.

The owner of the fazenda is well
known, and an extremely wealthy
man: he has asked for his name not
to be revealed. (Both his name and
that of his fazenda are on file with
FSR.)

As Inacio and his wife approached
the house they saw three persons
playing about (brincando) on the
fazenda landing strip (the owner
possesses a number of aircraft).
Inacio’s immediate impression was
that these persons were naked, but
Dna. Luiza says they were wearing
skin-tight clothes of a pale yellow
colour. When the three strangers
saw Inacio and his wife, they
started to move towards them.

It was at that point that Inacio
saw a strange ‘“‘aircraft” at the end
of the landing strip. This object was
touching, or almost touching, the
ground. It looked like an inverted

wash-basin. Inacio
came very frightened.

Inacio was carrying a 0.44 calibre
carbine, and it is stated that he took
aim at the nearest person and fired.
Almost immediately the ““aircraft™
emitted a beam of green light which
hit Inacio on the head and shoulder.
He fell unconscious, and Dna. Luiza
ran to help him. In some alarm she
watched the three ““persons™ enter
the **aircraft™ which thereupon took
off vertically, and at high speed,
with a noise like the humming of
bees.

suddenly be-

Aftermath

The owner of the fazenda de-
scribed the sequel. He had been
informed about the incident three
days after it had happened. It seems
that on the first and second days
Inacio had complained of numb-
ness and tingling of the body, and
of headaches. He also experienced
severe nausea. On the third day the
same symptoms were present, plus
continuous tremors of the hands
and head. The owner took the sick
man to a doctor in Goiania, more
than 300 km. from the fazenda.

The doctor discovered burns on
the trunk and head, such as might
have been caused by some poison-
ous plant, and indeed tried to
establish whether or not the patient
had eaten any poisonous plants.
When the fazenda owner told the
doctor the story of Inacio’s encoun-
ter, he showed surprise and sug-
gested an examination of faeces,
urine and blood. He prescribed
“Unguento Pierato de Butesin™
(friend Nigel shrunk from trans-
lating that, and settled merely for a
“?7") which I presume is an
ointment.

The burn marks were in the form
of a perfect circle 15 cm. in dia-
meter (Dr. Bernard Finch has
suggested they might have been
like a severe nettle rash).

The doctor thought Inacio had
suffered an hallucination, and was
suffering from some disease, for he
had no time for flying saucer
stories, did not believe Indcio’s
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story, and advised all concerned to
“keep silent on the matter™.

Inacio and his boss stayed on in
Goiania for four days, during which
time treatment continued. The
patient was then discharged to the
fazenda with the diagnosis “‘leu-
kaemia™. The prognosis was very
poor, the patient being given about
60 days to live.

Surprised at receiving the bill so
soon, in view of the serious condi-
tion of his employee, the owner
asked the doctor about it and was
told: **His case is a fatal one,
because it is cancer.”

According to information given
by Dna. Luiza, Inacio, once he had
returned to the fazenda, wasted
away to “‘skin and bone”, and was
covered with white, or yellowish-
white blotches, the size of a finger-
nail, which lay just beneath the
skin. He suffered much pain, and
died on October 11, 1967.

In accordance with her late
husband’s wishes, Dna. Luiza
burned all his clothes, the bed,
mattress, bedclothes and so on.

On being asked about the case,
the doctor at Goiania commented:
“So far as I am concerned it was
just another case of cancer. 1
advised the fazendeiro to “‘forget”
what he said his employee had said
had happened, since he (the fazen-
deiro) had not been an eye-
witness.”

Comment

Now that I have published details
of this alleged incident, 1 shall no
doubt receive the usual letters from
well-meaning folk who will howl
indignantly that I am a scare-
monger, and a wicked, misguided
person for daring to suggest that
our “‘visitors” wish us other than
well; for even thinking they are
other than goodness and light.
There may also be one or two cor-
respondents who suggest that I am
as “nutty as a fruitcake” for
believing such a tale.

So let me state here and now that
a much closer investigation will be
required before the story can be
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either accepted without question as
true, or dismissed as false. This,
however, does not mean that the
case should not go on the record, so
I suggest we now take a closer look
at the “*facts”” we have been given.

Here are a few possibilities that
stare at us out of those facts:

(i) The unfortunate Inacio was
at the time suffering from leukae-
mia, and the things he said he
saw were the result of an hallucina-
tory experience brought on by his
deteriorating condition. As his wife
said she saw the same things, 1
suppose this would mean she had
the same hallucination (but due to
another cause?). It is also possible
that she saw nothing, yet dutifully
supported her husband’s strange
story.

(i) The whole story was a
fabrication by Inacio—or Dna.
Luiza—who for reasons best known
to themselves in the lonely, remote
hinterland of Brazil, 300 km. from
the nearest doctor, were seeking
publicity. The onset of the killer
disease was in no way connected
with the burn marks, and was
completely coincidental.

(iii) Inacio did eat a poisonous
plant—or one affected with Stron-
tium 90 fallout—and having realised
his error, invented the flying saucer
story as a cover-up (!). Being
illiterate, he had not read about
UFOs, but he had heard of them
from the radio, and from gossip in
the village when on shopping trips,
and his memory was so good that
he got the details absolutely right
wlen he invented the story!

(iv) The victim and his wife had a
very real experience and reported it

accurately. Inacio’s subsequent con-
dition may or may not have been
attributable to things that happened
on the fazenda landing strip. The
Goiania doctor was very rightly
concerned about the possible wild-
fire circulation of such an alarming
story, and did his best to seal it off.

There may be other possibilities,
but I haven’t the space to consider
them here. As for those mentioned
above, /i and /i seem wildly im-
probable. As for possibility i/, it
seems unlikely that a man so sick
that his condition could bring on
hallucinations of such magnitude
would be able to make a shopping
trip, presumably on foot, to a fairly
distant village. Then, again, his
widow says she saw the same thing.
We know it is generally accepted
that two individuals cannot have
the same hallucination, unless . . .
and here we return to thoughts
which Max Cade and [ have
entertained, and nurtured,! during
the past two or three years . . .
unless those hallucinatory - type
images were imposed on the minds
of the “witnesses” from the same
source.? If we are to accept the
stories of Inacio and his wife in
terms of possibility 7, then it stands
to reason that the hallucinatory
experience could not have been due
to the disease. If we tie it in with our
more recent speculations, then it is
possible that there was a machine or
agency on the landing strip directing
radiation (like radar waves, for
example) at the witnesses and
causing them to “*see” things. When
poor Inacio got scared and popped
off a shot with his gun, could some
sort of defensive mechanism have
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come into play, and intensified or
changed the type of beam already
directed on Inacio, while the
“creatures” were withdrawn? Dr.
Finch has pointed out that the beam
must have been highly directional
for its effects not to have been felt
by Dna. Luiza as well.

Let us not forget that this is just
speculative “‘thinking aloud™, al-
though we do know that excessive
exposure to radiation can cause
leukaemia.? And if the beam of
green light focused on Indcio de
Souza was the cause of the onset of
the killer disease, then it must have
been a very intense radiation, for 1
have never heard of a victim being
carried away so quickly after
exhibiting the first symptoms of the
disease.

As for the details of the sighting,
I would very much like to know how
the entities returned to their craft.
I wonder if the investigators
pressed Dna. Luiza on this point . ..
it is very important.

Finally, if this account is to be
believed—and 1 do not think it
should be dismissed out of hand—
then the warning inherent in the
story is that if anyone is unfortun-
ate enough to come within striking
range of one of these objects and

its attendant entities, then they
should not take any offensive
action. In a slightly different

context, Dr. Bernard Finch once
warned us to ‘*Beware the Saucers™ ;*
it is good advice in any context.

NOTES

' Cade, C. Maxwell: 4 Long Cool Look u«
Alien Intellicence, FSR, Vol. 13, Nos. 2, 3, 4,
and especially Vol. 13, No. 6 (November/
December 1967) and Vol. 14, No. 2 (March/
April 1968).

t Bowen, Charles: Few and Far Between, FSR
Special Issue, THE HUMANOIDS, Strangers
about the House, FSR, Vol. 14, No. 5 (Septem-
ber/October 1968), One Day in Mendoza,
FSGI;. Vol. 14, No. 6 (November/December
1968).

% For example, I understand, on good autho-

rity, that before adequate safeguards were

taken, early colour-TV sets in the U.S.A.

were the probable cause of a number of cases

of leukaemia. The combination of wide-angle

TV tubes and multiple cathode guns required

much higher anode potential than in ordinary

“black and white’ sets. The resulting higher

incidence of higher-velocity electron beams

was impinging—at the end of each scanning
sweep—on the unguarded metal framework
of the sets. This caused a “splashing-off” of

X-rays which played in particular on the

fringe viewers. If something as innocent as a

TV set can generate lethal radiation, then

imagine what a laser-like beam of concen-

trated gamma particles could do—a view
with which Dr. Bernard Finch concurred
when 1 discussed this case with him.

Finch, Dr. Bernard E.: Beware the Saucers,

fSR. Vol. 12, No. | (January/February
966).
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FURTHER REPORTS OF

UFO BASES
Gordon Creighton

ENTION has been made in
FLYING SAUCER REVIEW from
time to time!' of the belief, ap-
parently widely held in some parts
of South America, that the opera-
tors of the UFOs possess bases or
landing sites of predilection, be it
beneath the sea along the Atlantic
coastline of Brazil and Argentina,
or in the uninhabited uplands, the
puno, of the vast Andean Cordillera.
During the great wave of 1965,
for example, there were reports that
a mysterious ravine in a certain
extremely secluded valley, some
60 kilometres to the south-west of
Cordoba, in North-Central Argen-
tina, might be serving as one of
these bases.

Loretani valley incidents

On September 7, 1965, the Buenos
Aires publication Asi carried the
following report about it:

“A flying saucer base exists at a
spot some 60 km. SW of Coérdoba.
Some 50 farm workers, three lawyers,
a hotelkeeper, a rancher, members of
the Rosario Meteorological Service,
and even a captain of the Navy, have
been witnesses to the flights of many
saucers which seem to have taken the
Valley of Loretani as the centre for
their operations, and a nearby ravine
as their special base and hiding place.

“It all started on July 15, 1965, in an
idyllic spot. The Loretani Valley, so
named in memory of the grandfather
of the present owners, is in the foothills
of the Sierra Grande, some twenty
kilometres from the dam at Los
Molinos. Leaving the Alta Gracia—
Rio Tercero road, a dirt track winds
off through the mountains to the spot.
Around about are pine tree nurseries
and plantations, some of the trees just
sprouting, others now over 3ft. These
are lands that are fertile even if not
under cultivation, and a forestry
concern, the COFINCO, has bought
about 7,000 hectares here and is
gradually putting it all under trees. In
charge of these plantations is Sr. Rubén
Busquets, who lives in the valley with
his wife Diana Loretani, a descendant
of the original owners. They have a
fifteen-year-old daughter Marcela, a
woman to help in the house, and her
twelve-year-old daughter, and about

fifty hired hands who work on the tree
plantations. There are few other
settlers in the area, apart from one or
two cattle and sheep farms. There are
a couple of inns, and near the road
leading off to the Valley of Loretani
stands the modern Hotel de la Entrada,
which serves as the social centre for
the population gradually developing
around here in what is called Villa
Ciudad de America.

“Such then is the setting for one of
the most extraordinary stories that it
has ever fallen to us to report.

“It all started on July 15, and the
Busquets family themselves were the
first to see the saucers that are now
throwing this whole region into an
uproar, Sr. Busquets told us: ‘I had
been up to the bar of the Hotel de la
Entrada with my wife and daughter
Marcela, to collect the mail, as we
usually do two or three times a week.
Besides getting our mail we also do any
telephoning that is necessary, as it is
the only place in the region with a
telephone.

**It was about 8.00 p.m., and we
were returning to our home in the
Valley. Marcela had got out to open
the gate. And then we saw it.

“The gate in question is on the top
of a hill. From there, across to the East,
we could see the profile of the Sierras
Grandes, towards the North and West
other hills also, and, away towards the
South-West, the waters of the Los
Molinos Dam.

*“The object was big and very lumi-
nous, of a bluish colour, but varying
from moment to moment, sometimes
to orangish-red. Its shape was that of
a truncated cone, though we were
unable to see clearly where the upper
part of it ended owing to the beam of
light directed upwards out of the object,
The lower part was circular and convex.
Taking the nearby hills as my gauge, |
reckon that it was some ten to fifteen
metres in diameter. It was motionless
and made no sound. At one moment it
shone a beam of light on to us. At that
moment we became certain that it was
something out of the ordinary. There
are no houses and no roads over in
that direction. It could not be any
powerful light or any illusion caused
by car headlights. It was “‘something™
which was above and also behind the
hill. After a long pause, it dropped
down vertically, and the terrain hid it
from us, but we could still see the glow
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from it. Then finally the glow went out-

* “We went on up to the house, but
before we reached it we met one of
our peones who was lying on the
ground, having been thrown by his
horse. He was pretty dazed, and
covered with mud and dried grass. As
a mestizo can never accept that a
horse has thrown him, he told us that
the horse ‘had thrown itself belly-
upwards, so as fo see them better!”
From which we realized that we were
not the only ones to have seen that
light in the sky: this peasant had seen
it too, and his horse had been so
terrified by it that it had thrown him.” ™

Frequent visitations

But what had at first seemed
exceptional became a regular occur-
rence later, for the Busquets saw
the objects daily. It became a
common thing for them to observe
a UFO flying about over the Valley
and dropping down into the ravine.
One day a circular mark, some 7
metres wide, was found at a spot
where evidently a craft had landed
momentarily, and on another occa-
sion Senora Busquets was able to
see clearly windows on one of the
craft. By now the hired hands were
seeing them every night and had
come to regard the situation as
something quite normal.

One day, Senor Busquets was
sitting in his car beneath some
power-lines, and was watching one
of the UFOs. He received a severe
shock. Bethinking himself of the
danger that the UFO might bring
the power-lines down on top of
him, he started the engine and
moved the car away from there.
The UFO, which he estimated to be
at a distance of some 300 metres
from him, promptly turned off its
own light, leaving only a reddish
glow, which seemed to revolve
around it for a while and then this
glow also faded.

On the night of July 24, 1965, the
Busquets were again over at the
Hotel de la Entrada, and were
telling their friends about these
happenings. A group of strangers
who were present thought it all a
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huge joke, so the Busquets invited
them there and then to come home
with them and see for themselves,
which they did.

Landing witnessed by sceptics

Arriving at the Busquets’ home-
stead, the party beheld an object
described as “like a shining cigar
with a black band around it, the
apparent size of the cigar being
twice the diameter of a full moon™.
For about 10 seconds this object
remained stationary above the
horizon. Then it descended for 3
seconds, rose up again for 4
seconds, and finally plunged down
into the Ravine. After that a glow
was seen emanating from the
ravine for a while, and then total
darkness. The visitors, who had
said that UFOs were all a big joke
but had now seen this astonishing
phenomenon with their own eyes,
were a Dr. Felix Cochero (lawyer)
from La Plata; a Dr. Fortunato
Colomba (also a lawyer), and
Senor Miguel Carlos Cuesta, mana-
ger of the COFINCO Enterprises.

When Senor Busquets was inter-
viewed to get this story, he was
found to be very unwilling to
discuss the matter. He did not like
publicity, and did not want to be
taken for a madman. Dr. Cochero

subsequently told the story to a
journalist in Rosario, and in due
course the affair was causing a
sensation throughout the Buenos
Aires press.

Sightings virtually to order

The manager of the Hotel de la
Entrada and his wife, Sr. and Sra.
Obregon, recall that a Belgian guest
who was at the hotel recently was
highly sceptical about UFOs. But
he was awakened by one at mid-
night, and stood there in his
dressing-gown at the window,
watching it move above the nearby
Sierras. Sr. Obregon said the man
had not laughed about UFOs after
that.

On Saturday, September 5, the
Argentine naval officer, Captain
Pagani,? who has seen three UFOs,
was at the Loretani Valley to see
the phenomenon for himself. He
returned in a hurry to Buenos
Aires to fetch a whole team of
observers.

Senora Busquets claims to have
seen a whole flotilla of five of the
smaller saucers. Two members of
CODOVNI, the UFO investigation
group in Buenos Aires, also had a
strange experience. They are Sr.
Jorge Barquero and Sr. Alberto
Schuster, and both are meteoro-
logists. They were in the Loretani
Valley at the same time as Captain
Pagani. They had a UFO in sight,
and had a telescope trained on it.
Suddenly, the UFO approached
them, dazzled them, blocking out
the whole area of vision of the
telescope, and then vanished.

Later reports of bases

An EFE report of July 31, 1968,
from Urcos, Peru, appeared in the
Spanish newspaper Sur for August 1.
The report stated that the rural
populace in the Peruvian Andes
were now so terrified by the “flying
saucer apparitions’ that the autho-
rities of the district of Huaro had
despatched a commission to inves-
tigate reports that the saucers were
using as a base a particular area
close to Lake Yanacocha, in the
central part of Peru.

The farmers of the area in ques-
tion claim to have seen luminous
objects shooting downwards at
great speed, as though to land, and
a group of the principal personali-
ties in several of the nearby towns
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and villages have called upon the
competent authorities and have
testified that the UFOs are using as
a landing area an extensive plain
lying between Lake Yanacocha and
Lake Pumacocha. Twice weekly,
so it was claimed, the saucers were
appearing there in broad daylight,
and then vanishing at great speed
leaving behind marks on the ground.
The rural populace were in an
uproar, fearing lest their crops and
herds might suffer damage from the
apparitions. Hence the decision of
the authorities to send the Com-
mission, which would also be
accompanied by armed police.

Further press reports from Lima
dated September 27 and 29, 1968,
also appeared in the Spanish press.
They stated that according to an
announcement made by Sr. Carlos
Paz, President of the Peruvian
Institute for Interplanetary Rela-
tions (IPRI), in an exclusive inter-
view in the Peruvian daily Expreso
of Lima, a “*saucerdrome™ (platillo-
dromo in Spanish) had been found
at Chumo, a place two days distant
from Cerro de Santa Barbara, in
the Sicuani area. This region lies in
the Departamento of Cuzco, in the
southern part of Peru, and therefore
right in the Peruvian Andes.

The report stated that the dis-
covery of the landing area had been
made by Sr. Antonio Ponce de
Ledn, an engineer who is the
president of the IPRI branch in
Cuzco. He had come to Chumo to
investigate in view of the numerous
reports received from the inhabi-
tants of that district, all of whom
are South American Indians.

A base beneath the waters of
Lake Titicaca?

According to an Agence France-
Presse despatch® of November 11,
1968, from Buenos Aires, published
in Spanish newspapers that same
month, a report had been received
from Lima, capital of Peru, to the
effect that the flying saucers seen so
frequently over South America had
a base in the depths of Lake
Titicaca. People living near the
shores of this large Andean lake
between Peru and Bolivia had
reported that saucers were con-
stantly seen heading towards the
lake and vanishing there.

(continued on page 19)






















































